FAQ Sheet On Offeror Proposal Submission Under The GSA Environmental Solicitation TFTP-EW-990899-B Refresh #5

(Revised as of 8/26/04)

Worldwide Federal Supply Schedule For

Environmental Services

FSC Group 899

GENERAL QUESTIONS REGARDING THE OFFER

Q:  During the process of completing an offer when a new solicitation is issued, do I have to submit under the new version?


A:  No, if the offer is received no later than 30 days after the posting of the newer version, then you may submit your offer under the previous solicitation. If more than 30 days have passed, then you must submit under the newest solicitation.




Q:  Can the document be hand written or must it be typed?


A:  Responses can be hand written. However, GSA recommends that the responses be typed in order to add clarity to the proposal submission.  


Q:  GSA addresses construction services through the Public Building Services (PBS). Can a Multiple Award Schedule cover certain types of construction such as specific electrical repairs, installation, etc.?

A:  Construction work is outside the scope of all the Special Item Numbers (SINs) under the Environmental Services Schedule 899 and all other Multiple Award Schedules.  This also includes subcontracting. There are however, instances on other schedules where electrical work would be considered incidental to the project. For instance, on the General Products schedule, the purchase of a piece of equipment may require installation and hookup. The installation and hookup (an electrical connection, for example) are considered incidental to the purchase of the equipment and are allowed.

COVER PAGE TO OFFER: (Page iv)

Q:  On the “Cover Page to Offer” page regarding “Each Authorized Negotiator’s Name, Title and Phone Number” – is this asking for the name of the person filling out the application or the names of any employees that will be negotiating a federal contract after we have a GSA contract?

A:  A firm must identify the personnel authorized to hold discussions and obligate the firm both during the evaluation phase and during the life of the contract. This point of contact (POC) can be someone other than the person signing the 1449 and is often referred to as Contract Administrator.  In some cases, there may be more than one POC.




Q:  On the “Cover Page to Offer” page regarding “Aggregate Estimated Government Sales Per Contract Year in dollars” – is this the dollar amount we hope to do per year or the dollar amount we have done over the past year? Also, does government sales include state, city, and county work?

A:  This is the Aggregate Estimated federal Government Sales Per Contract Year that you expect to do under the Environmental Schedule Contract.  This amount should also be equal to the NAICS total sales in A2 on page 2 and the SIN total sales in paragraph (2) of Attachment 3 on page 118.



Q:  Since we do not have a particular work order in mind, how should we estimate our “Anticipated Aggregate Estimated Government Sales Per Contract Year”?  Can we provide a range as opposed to an exact amount?

A:  The amount is a best guess based on your anticipated sales to the government but cannot be a range.


Q:  Given that we provide services as opposed to products, is it necessary that we accept the Government wide Commercial Purchase Card?

A:  Yes, the requirement applies to services as well as products.



Q:  Other than possible exceptions to the terms and conditions, what other information needs to be included in the cover letter?

A:  Nothing.



OFFEROR CHECKSHEET: (Page v)

Q:  Do we include only the pages listed on the checksheet?


A:  Section I, Administrative Proposal, should include all documents from the Cover Page to Offer through and including attachments 1, 2, 3, 4 (if you are a large business) and 6.  




Q:  Should Sections I, II, and III of the proposal be submitted as three separate documents?  For a paper submittal should each be comb-bound or in binders?

A:  It isn't necessary that the three sections be placed in separate binders.  They can all be placed in one binder and tabbed or just tabbed with no binder.  The important thing is that we receive all the proper paperwork.



Q:  On the Offeror Checksheet of the GSA Environmental Services Solicitation under Section II Experience, there is a request for “a copy of our audited annual report, an audited consolidated financial statement, or other such information that demonstrates the company’s financial stability.”  Upon searching through the solicitation, I did not find a place that requested that specific information, and I would like to get more details on the format and specific content requirements of such a report. When I presented this piece to our Financial Manager, she offered to provide a range of materials but wanted to know specifically what you were looking for to ensure our response is appropriate.


A:  Unfortunately you're not going to find any other specific information in the solicitation telling you exactly what we're looking for in this area. If you don't have an audited financial annual report or audited financial statement, a copy of your company's latest balance sheet and/or income statement will suffice. As it mentions in the Offeror Checksheet, GSA is just trying to obtain information regarding your company's financial stability.




Q:  Should the completed application be organized according to the Offeror Checksheet or the way it was originally received?  Example:  Under Section I/Administrative on the Offeror Checksheet, Attachment 3 is before page 21 and page 26 is listed after page 60.  

A:  The way it was originally received.



Q:  (Section III/Pricing) To whom should we send the electronic version of the pricing section, and do we only send that section or would they prefer the entire application?  

A:  To the address shown in provision F10, B.  It is your choice whether to submit the entire offer electronically or not.  You may also submit your pricing on a CD or floppy disk if you submit a hard copy of your offer.



Q:  (Section I/Administrative) Where should the signature be placed on the Offeror Checksheet?

A:  You don’t need to sign the Offeror Checksheet, only the Cover Page to Offer and the SF 1449.


SF 1449

Q:  Under item number 12 – Discount Terms, what is a standard discount for environmental services?

A:  This is a prompt payment discount and if no discount is entered then the payment terms default to Net 30 days.



Q:  Under A.2 (Page 2) there is a request to complete the following table indicating estimated average annual sales applicable to our proposed SINs.  The table below is asking for the estimated average annual sales of the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code that represents the preponderance of sales of the two NAICS codes listed. How do I address this in the table?

A:  The table asks for the estimated average annual sales ………because some firms provide services under both NAICs (multiple SINs), and size determination is then based upon “preponderance”. Firms offering services that impact both NAICS should then identify monetary value for each NAIC which adds as support for NAIC/Size determination. Based on SBA Size Standards rules described in the previous question, data you enter in the table will be used by GSA to determine the size of your business.




Q:  Under B.5 page 9 regarding the requests for schedules of training courses, we usually provide prices on a per person basis.  Can I use a per person price for that section (page 9)?  Also, the prices are based on the assumption that the client would be coming to one of our facilities for a class.  If our one of our trainers has to go to another facility, we will charge an extra fee for meals, lodging and additional expenses, is this just assumed or am I to add that price into the class price?

A:  You can provide a "per person" price for classes but you should also provide a minimum number of students and a cost for each additional student.  Regarding the second part of your question; travel, meals and lodging are reimbursed by the ordering agency (see provision E.8, paragraph (b) of the solicitation).  If there are other costs (you mention additional expenses), you would need to identify what they are and how much

Q:  Under B5, (Page 11) Under SIN 899-99:  Introduction of New Services.  If we are not planning to introduce new services, do we need to state this, and if so, where?

A:  No, this SIN is for new services that would fall within the scope of the Environmental Schedule but are not included under any of the other SINs.



C.5   SCOPE OF CONTRACT-WORLDWIDE (c): Page 17

Q:  Regarding the geographic requirements of the environmental solicitation, we have capabilities limited to the State of California, can we bid on this solicitation solely within our geographic area, or are we required to have capabilities "world-wide”?

A:  In your situation you would check the box for domestic delivery only. However, once you are contracted, you would respond to a Request For Quote (RFQ) only from those agencies located within the state of California.


CLAUSE C.24 CONTRACT PRICE LISTS

Q:  On Page 29, C.24 (b)(1), Federal Supply Schedule Price List – To whom do we distribute this list and is this distribution part of the application process?  If it were not part of the application process, when would we distribute this list?

A:  You would distribute the price list after award, and we will furnish you with a mailing list at time of award.



Q:  On 29, C.24 (b)(2)(ii). Federal Supply Schedule Price List – Since we are providing professional services, I am assuming we will create our own price list.  Given that assumption, what are the “items, terms and conditions accepted by the Government”?

A:  This is referring to awards that are based on an offeror’s Commercial Price List (CPL), however, we are aware that not all offeror’s have Commercial Price Lists.



Q:  On page 29 / C.24 (b)(2)(ii) Federal Supply Schedule Price List – This paragraph states “the Contractor must show on the cover page the notation “Prices Shown Herein are Net (discount deducted)”, are they referring to the GSA Application cover page or the Federal Supply Schedule Price List?

A:  No, if the rates were based on an offeror’s CPL, they are typically discounted to GSA and it is the discounted rates that paragraph is referring to.



Q:  Page 29 / C.24 (b)(3) Federal Supply Schedule Price List – Do we need to include a completed version of the Federal Supply Schedule Price List Cover Page even though we are not currently pursuing work under this schedule or is this an example of what we will need to include for future work?

A:  This is a document you will prepare after award and we will send you a sample copy with the award.




Q:  On Page 32 / C.24 (b)(9) Federal Supply Schedule Price List – Since we only provide services and not products, should we respond by stating “Not Applicable (N/A)” to the blanks asking for Mailing List Code, Commodity Code, and Approximate No of Copies?

A:  You can just leave them blank.



CLAUSE C25 ELECTRONIC COMMERCE – FACNET

Q:  On Page 33 / C.25 (c) Do contractors typically register through their VAN before or after they have submitted the GSA application?

A:  It is something that can be done at any time.



CLAUSE D1 CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS REQUIRED TO IMPLEMENT STATUES OR EXECUTIVE ORDERS – COMMERCIAL ITEMS

Q:  Page 48 / D.1 (b) Do we need to provide copies of our policies to give proof of compliance with the indicated statutes and/or executive orders or is a signature of our understanding proof enough at this stage?

A:  By signing your offer on the SF 1449 you agree to the terms and conditions set forth in the solicitation.




CLAUSE D2 STATEMENT OF EQUIVALENT RATES FOR FEDERAL HIRES 

(52.222-42)(MAY 1989) (Page 51)

Q:  Page 51 of Solicitation; Section D.2 includes a table referencing "Employee Class" which uses a five-digit number. I assumed that this is correlated to the Federal Position Classification Plan, but it does not seem to as that system uses a four-digit number. Is there a different Employee Classification table that I should be using?

A: The Employee Class number comes from the Department of Labor, and their Directory of Occupations.  You can access them on-line at www.dol.gov and search using “directory of occupations".
CLAUSE F.2 PREPARATION OF OFFER (Pages 54 – 64)

Q:  We do not have a published price list as requested on page 57 of the schedule (F.2 c.1).  What kind of documentation is required to show our pricing schedule?

A.:  For offeror’s, who do not have commercial price lists, please see Section III - Pricing, paragraph (c) on page 63. The supporting information could consist of copies of invoices, contracts, or purchase orders that show the same labor categories as you've proposed to GSA.



CLAUSE F10 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

Q:  Page 61 (B)(1) what is the preferred format to demonstrate that our proposed pricing is fair, reasonable, and supportable?

A:  You can either provide a narrative discussion of why you feel your rates are fair and reasonable or a table comparing your rates with competitor’s rates, etc.



Q:  On Page 61 / F.10 (B)(2) How would we indicate that we are offering the Most Favored Customer (MFC) pricing?

A:  Tell us who your most favored customer is now, what rates they are charged, and support those rates in some fashion such as copies of invoices.





CLAUSE F11 PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS (L-FSS-10FT-502 Pages 62


SECTION II: Experience (Pages 62 – 63)


Corporate Experience (Page 62)

Q:  Since we are offering professional services, we will need to submit a Professional Compensation Plan.  What exact information are you looking for?  Is it referring to salary, 401K, medical/dental, vacation, etc… policies?

A:  Yes, tell us about your companies salary, 401K, etc.



Q:  How detailed should the project descriptions be, given that we have a total of 3 pages?

A:  It should be detailed enough so that we can tell from your corporate experience that you are able to perform the services you are offering to the Government on the schedule.



Q:  Are current projects acceptable or do they need to have been completed?

A:  We prefer recently completed projects but one or two on-going projects are acceptable.

Q:  What is "direct charge employees” as stated in 52.237-10 Identification of Uncompensated Overtime?

A:  Employees that are directly involved in the work and not part of a general and administrative (G&A) cost or overhead cost.

Q:  In reference to “page limits” for Corporate Experience, when pursuing multiple SINs, how does this fit into the “3 pages per SIN” concept, and how is this different from information required in the “executive summary”?

A:  Corporate experience is limited to three (3) pages per SIN.  However, when combining SINs you could exceed three pages if necessary. The key to remember is that this area is used to evaluate your ability to perform the services you are offering that is demonstrated in narrative provided by your firm. This differs from the executive summary in that your summary should provide a narrative of what services you are intending to provide and how you intend to execute any resultant work. 



Q:  Can the previous experience of our employees be included in the Corporate Experience section?  For example, Jane Doe has 12 years of experience providing occupational training services, but she has only been at with us for one of those years.  Can we use her experience at another firm to prove that we can provide this service?

A:  Yes, that would be acceptable.



Q:  In Section II Experience, under subheading Corporate Experience, can one project be submitted in representation of more than one Special Item Number (SIN)?

A:  Yes, you may submit one project for more than one SIN. Make sure that the project identifies which SINs.



Q:  Under project experience, would it be better for us to use individual project experience or multiple projects for the same client, i.e. we have a hospital as a client and we provide on-going service for different areas of the hospital throughout the year?

A:  Individual project experience is generally better but that is not a hard-and-fast rule


 Q:  (Section II/Experience) How detailed should the description of our segregating and tracking costs system be? Do you simply need to know the name of the software and that it is capable of handling tracking and segregation?

A:  Just a general description of the software/accounting system and its capabilities.

Q:  Under “Corporate Experience” of the solicitation there are requirements to submit a Professional Compensation Plan in accordance with Clause 52.222-46 and to submit a copy of the offeror’s policy that addresses uncompensated overtime in accordance with Clause 52.237-10. Where do I find these clauses since they are not printed out in the solicitation?

A:  Go to the National Archives and Records Administration’s website of Electronic Code of Federal Regulations e-CFR located at: www.gpoaccess.gov/ecfr.  Select: Title 48; Browse Part 52.  
You will find the Compensation Plan information under paragraph (b) of Clause 52.222-46 and the Overtime information under paragraph (b) of Clause 52.237-10.



Q:  Under “Corporate Experience”, Clause 52.222-46 (a) is asking for supporting information for our Compensation Plan.  Where do we find this data, surveys, etc. asked for in this paragraph?

A:  A firm needs to identify the source or basis used to create their Compensation plan. (e.g. methodologies, sources used)




Q:  In reference Section II Experience, under subheading Corporate Experience, is the page limit for this section three pages per SIN offered? As an example, if offering on four SINs, would the page limit for describing projects similar in size and complexity be limited to 12 pages.

A:  The page limit is three pages per SIN offered. So the total page limit for four SINs would be 12 pages.



Q:  In reference Section II Experience, under subheading Corporate Experience, should the narrative be limited to describing projects completed in the last three years, or can additional narrative about representative environmental services be submitted?

A:  You can add some general information with the specific projects if you feel that it is relevant.



Past Performance: (Page 63)

Q:  We will shortly submit our past performance to open ratings. How long does it take to go through the process to contract award?

A:  When a request has been submitted to Open Ratings Inc. (ORI), a copy of the results is transmitted to GSA within 2-3 weeks. Once offer and rating are received, the evaluation process normally takes approximately 90-120 days. Delays encountered are often due to receipt of an incomplete offer and/or workload of individual contract specialists.




Q:  In reference to Section II Experience, under the subheading Past Performance, will GSA accept a past performance evaluation form submitted to Open Ratings, Inc. with a date of submission prior to issuance of the “refreshed” solicitation if there was no change in project information being submitted in response to the older version of the solicitation?  

A:  GSA will accept the past performance with a date of submission prior to issuance of the “refreshed” solicitation. We prefer it only be within the past 6 months, but we will accept up to the past 6 – 12 months.



Q:  For the past performance evaluation, do we have to include the DUNS

number and contract number?


A:  If you do not have relevant corporate past performance, then we do our own evaluation with the references that you provide to us. When we contact your references, we need the contract number in order to identify the work you did. The DUNS number is not required.  However, if you do have corporate experience and you are sending to Open Ratings, Inc., then include the contract number in order to identify the work and the DUNS number if it was work for another company that has one.

Q:  On page 75 – 78 of the solicitation regarding “Past Performance Report – Please provide 20 of your customers to be surveyed”, my understanding is that we don’t need to fill this portion out if we have submitted a “Past Performance Evaluation” to Open Ratings.  Is this correct?

A:  Although the Open Rating Incorporated (ORI) rating has been requested, a firm must still provide the list that was submitted to ORI. This list is often used to contact the references for additional information as related to past performance.




SECTION III: PRICING: (Pages 63 – 64)

Q:  For Section III--Pricing, should the solicitation pages 63-64 (Application of Escalation Clauses to Proposed Hourly Rates) be filled out and included in the document, or is this information just supposed to be incorporated somewhere into the price proposal?

A:  You can just incorporate the requested information somewhere in your price proposal.  Our intent was to bring this clause and its options to the attention of all offerors whose pricing is not based on a commercial price list.



Q:  On Page 63, how detailed do the descriptions of the labor categories need to be? Are you simply looking for education and years of experience requirements or for a detailed explanation of job responsibilities?

A:  A general description of job responsibilities along with the education and experience.



Q:  On Page 63, How detailed should the description of the proposed annual rate of escalation be?

A:  Show us what you are basing your proposed rate of escalation on. We’re looking for more than just a proposed rate. We want to know how you determined it.



Q:  On Page 64 Pricing (a) (2), do we need to provide a copy of the Market Indicator or is filling in the blanks enough?

A:  The escalation rate for (a)(1) and (a)(2) is an either/or – we’re asking you to choose one or the other.



Q:  Does GSA have a standard labor category list that we should use for pricing on our proposal?

A:  No, we don't have a list of standard labor categories as we try to allow our offerors the flexibility to classify their labor categories in a way that best suits their needs.



Q:  I do most of my non-government work under fixed-price contracts.  I would like to submit two or three commercial invoices and attach cost breakdowns to demonstrate my pricing justification.  Will that meet your requirement?

A:  If the invoices you will provide only show a lump sum and the cost breakdown will show hours and a labor rate or how you arrived at the lump sum, than that would be acceptable.



Q:  As a one-person operation I will not have examples of other labor categories.  Anticipating growth over the next few years, I would like to include other labor categories in my proposal.  In order to provide additional justification for additional labor categories, can I use prices from competitors that are available on the Internet?

A:  Our general rule is additional labor categories are acceptable if they will be needed in the near future (a year).  Otherwise, all our contractors have the ability to request a contract modification anytime after award to add new labor categories as they are hired or become necessary.



Q:  How and when do we price materials?

A:  We ask that you price materials if they typically exceed $2500 on any given job and they can generally be priced in a manner that follows your standard commercial practice.



Q:  How is travel paid for?

A:  Travel is generally directly reimbursed by the ordering agency, but please see paragraph (b) of Provision E.8 of the solicitation entitled, Contractor Tasks/Special Requirements.



Q:  Is there a difference between firm-fixed price vs. labor hour task orders as to what information our submission/application needs to include? 


A:  No there is no difference in the information you provide. The deciding factor is your accounting system and whether or not it is capable of segregating and tracking task orders on an hourly basis.

Q:  Do costs for equipment and materials, subcontracted services, or related costs need to be included, and/or is it advantageous to try to provide costs for a long list of possible billable items despite the fact that they may seldom be used? 


A:  Equipment and materials costs, etc. for frequently used items are desired. 




Q:  Are equipment and/or materials costs required for SIN 899-8 (remediation services)? 


A:  Equipment and/or material costs are desired but not required.




Q:  What is the level of detail required for the "accounting system" description and is submission of a timesheet needed? 


A:  Just a general description of your accounting system is all that is needed with a statement as to whether or not it can segregate and track individual elements of price.




Q:  I do most of my non-government work under fixed-price contracts.  I would like to submit two or three commercial invoices and attach cost breakdowns to demonstrate my pricing justification.  Will that meet your requirement?

A:  If the invoices you will provide only show a lump sum, and the cost breakdown will show hours and a labor rate or how you arrived at the lump sum, that would be acceptable.



Q:  Being a one-person operation, I will not have examples of other labor categories. But I anticipate growth over the next few years and would like to include other labor categories in my proposal.  If I do not include other labor categories, I will not be able to grow or effectively compete against larger companies.  Do you need additional justification for the other labor categories? If so, can I use prices from competitors that are available on the Internet?

A:  Our general rule is that additional labor categories are acceptable if they will be needed in the near future (a year).  Otherwise, you have the ability to request a contract modification anytime after award to add new labor categories as they are hired or become necessary.  We will need additional justification for the other labor categories and their rates.  Supporting information such as competitor’s rates is acceptable, but the rates you propose should be competitive for your area of the country and bear a relationship to education and experience requirements as well.



Q:  What type of supporting documentation for the Commercial Sales Practice Format is expected?

A:  Copies of invoices, contracts, or purchase orders showing the labor category and rates.



Q:  What type of information should be included in our discussion of why we believe our pricing is fair and reasonable and how it relates to most favored customer pricing?

A:  You can either provide a narrative discussion of why you feel your rates are fair and reasonable or a table comparing your rates with competitor’s rates, etc.



Q:  Regarding Other Direct Costs (ODCs):  We will be submitting various labor categories with associated rates but would also like to submit some typical ODCs that we normally incur as part of our current environmental tasks and which we expect to incur in the future.  For example, there are items such as cameras, field equipment and other supplies that we have used in developing environmental assessments, studies of endangered species, etc.  We expect that in the future we would use this type of equipment, but it may not be exactly the type we purchased last month or last year.  It could subject to change depending upon specific requirements and what is available in the marketplace (as gear improves for example we may want to purchase more capable or more sturdy equipment).  Can you advise us how to submit and price such items?

A:  Pricing of ODCs is really not too much different from pricing the labor rates that are based on current conditions. So your rates should be based on what you currently use and have in-house. If you have a commercial price list that you use to price ODCs, then adjustments in price for the ODCs would also be subject to the Economic Price Adjustment (EPA) clause in the contract. If you don't have a CPL for the ODCs, then price adjustments are made in accordance with the EPA clause at provision C.31. We also realize there are changes in the market place. New items can be added to the contract under the modifications clause in much the same way as new labor categories.



Q:  Regarding SINs applied for: We believe we are extremely well qualified in three SIN areas and well qualified in one SIN area.  Our preference would be to submit a proposal for all four SINs at this time, but we also do not want to jeopardize our submission as a whole if you don’t think we are qualified under a specific SIN. What is your advice on this?

A:  If we do not think you are qualified under a particular SIN, it doesn't affect the SINs for which you are qualified. We would just ask you to withdraw your offer for that SIN and continue the evaluation of those SINs we find acceptable.




H.1 OFFEROR REPRESENTATION AND CERTIFICATION – COMMERCIAL ITEMS: Page 65

Q:  H.1 (c) (8) (i) and (ii) on page 68 asks that information be submitted if this solicitation has been identified as being in one of the four designated industry groups (DIGs) or one of the targeted industry categories (TICs)  Does the Environmental solicitation fall into one of these two categories?

A:  No, this solicitation does not fall into either these two categories. Under (8) (i), you can enter N/A. Under (8) (ii) (B), you can enter N/A.




ATTACHMENT 2 (Page 79


Q:  Is Attachment 2--Index of Register of Wage Determination Under the Service Contract Act just provided for our information or are we supposed to include it somewhere in one of the sections?  How do we use this information?

A:  Attachment 2 should be included with your Administrative Proposal, as it will become part of the resultant contract. This index lists all the Service Contract Act wage determinations that apply to this solicitation (see the NOTE on page 50 under "Addendum to 52.212-5"). The Service Contract Act establishes minimum wages and fringe benefits for service employees for work performed under any task orders issued under the resultant contract. You need to access the wage determination(s) for those areas where you believe you will be performing work (or the high cost areas if you aren't sure where you will be performing). You will need to assure that the rates you propose for those classes of employees subject to the Act meet or exceed the minimums set forth in the particular wage determination.

ATTACHMENT 3 (Page 118)

Q:  Regarding Attachment 3 Commercial Sales Practices Format -- Could you give a clearer definition of (4)(a) & (b)?- What does it mean, and how do we fill it out?

A:  Paragraph 4 is asking for information on prices you charge your "Most Favored Customer(s) (MFC)" with discounts, etc. Column 5 is information on prices you are proposing to charge GSA under this schedule/solicitation and the purpose is to compare the rates you charge your MFC to those you are proposing to GSA.  



Q:  Commercial Sales Practices Format (1) Given that we only provides services, not products, how should we complete this form? Are you requesting our revenue for last year?

A:  We are requesting your revenue from last year. This form is basically asking you provide information on your most favored customer(s) so you would fill out the form with this in mind.



Q:  Commercial Sales Practices Format (3) we will be offering our best rates, but how do we demonstrate this given that we do not sell a product?

A:  By telling us who currently receives your best rates and what those rates are and support them with copies of invoices, contracts, purchase orders, etc.



Q:  Commercial Sales Practices Format (2), Question 2 requests our “total projected annual sales to the Government under this contract for the contract term”. What time period is the “contract term” referring to (1 year, 5 years, 20 years)? How should we determine this amount given that we do not currently have a contract?

A:  We are asking for annual sales.  This amount must coincide with the amount you’ve shown on the Cover Page to offer and in provision A.2 on page 2. Again, it is just a “best guess”.



Q:  Commercial Sales Practices Format (4)(a), Assuming that we should answer Yes to question 3, how should we respond to question 4? Since we do not provide a product, it is almost impossible to determine a quantitative measure for the services we provide to each of our clients.  How do you recommend we respond to questions 4(a), 4(b), and 4(c)?

A:  You can put N/A in the quantity/volume column but we are looking for a comparison of what you charge your most favored customer versus what you are proposing to GSA

SMALL BUSINESS SUBCONTRACTING PLAN:  (Attachment 4, Page 120)

Q:  We are preparing an Offer and question whether we need to provide a Subcontracting plan at this time. The Offeror's checklist says "if applicable" (we are a large business under this NAICS, so that this could possibly be applicable) but the solicitation instructions imply that it is needed when a contract is awarded.  

A:  As a large business you are required to submit a small business subcontracting plan with your offer. Since small businesses are exempt from this requirement we used the term "if applicable".



Q:  On Page 126 regarding the small business-subcontracting plan in section 2. GOALS of the template-subcontracting plan, offerors are required to state separate dollar and percentage goals for the various small business types. In the template, there are boxes entitled "BASE", "1st Option", "2nd Option", and "3rd Option". What do these boxes mean, and what do I put in each box?

A:  The contract will have a five year "Base Period' and three, five year "Option Periods".  In the boxes put what you estimate you will subcontract under the contract for each one of those periods.




Q:  Since we are a small business do we need to state this as a reason for not completing Attachment 4 or is that already assumed based on our answers to the questions on the Cover Page to Offer?

A:  It’s assumed based on your business size checked on the Cover Page to Offer and the Reps. & Certs. completed at H.1 (page 65).
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